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colleague, Shri Jaswant Singh, for lkeave to withdraw the bill to declare the
Indian Council of World Affarrs 1o be an institution of national imponiance
and to provide for its incorporation ang matters connected therewith, which
was passed by the Lok Sabha on the 18" December, 2000, and laid on the
Tabie of the Rajya Sabha on the 18" December, 2000.

The guestion was put and the motion was adopted.

SHRI JAGMOHAN: Sir, | withdraw the Bill.

DISCUSSION ON THE STATEMENT OF PRIME MINISTER RECENT
SUMMIT-LEVEL TALKS HELD BETWEEN INDIA AND PAKISTAN
IN AGRA (Contd.)
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! Transliteration of the spasech in Persian Script is available in the Hindi version of the debate.
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' Transtiteration of the spaech in Parsian Script is available in the Hindl vaersion of the debate.
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ggr fad A gfor Trefaal @ awad,
dc T A S gEhr o & Wiaa & @

I g, givam|
MR. CHAIRMAN: There are a number of speakers. | would like

the sgeakers 1o be brief. Now, Shri J. Chitharanjan; you have nine minutes,
because your Party has nine minutes.

SHRI J. CHITHARANJAN (Kerala): Hon., Chairman, Sir, the
Communist Party of India, which | represent, had welcomed the initiative
taken by the Prime Mwnister of India to invite Mr. Musharraf, the President of
Pakistan for Summit-level talks. It is so because we believed that the
disputes between the countries will have to be settled through negotiations.
Resorting to the tactics ¢f setting the disputes through force will be very
dangerous and disastrous, That is why we had supported that initiative.
Sir, at the same time, we thought that the Government might have done
some preparations before the start of the Summit.  The Summit-level talks
between the Heads of States is quite different from the talks at the official
level, at the level of Secretaries or even at the Ministerial level. [t being so,
Sir, & careful and serious preparation will have to be made, while we
arrange for Summit-level talks. Al several levels, discussions should have
been carmied on, at the official level, at the Ministerial level, etc. just to
explore or probe the mind ©of the other party, to understand what
perspective they are having and also o understand whether there is any
amount of agreement that could be reached. But, to my surprise, the
Government has failed in that. It was a very serious mistake on the part of
the Government of not having done such a serious preparation. Now, the
Summit had ended, and we could neither arrive at a minimum settlement,
nor we could come cut with a joint declaration. Even then we are of the
view that we will have to continue the dialogue There is no other way to
solve the problems between the two countrnies.

At the same tme, | would like to point out that the Prime Minisier
had stated: "We made progress despite differences in our perspectives.
We made progress towards bridging the approaches in the draft joint
document.” 50, # you go through what he said in his statement, you will
find that both the parties were having different perspectives. While Gen.
Musharral was asking to tocus on Kashmir and had even gone to the extent
of stating that without Kashmir no other issue could be discussed, the
Government of India was taking the position that we should bave a
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composite dialogus. In the same manner, when we demanded that there
was a question of stopping tha cross-border terrorism, he refused to agree.
Not only that, he even went to the extent of characterising it as a freedom
struggie. | do not want to go into it in more detail, but what | would like to
point out is that there was an ocean of difference between the two parties.
In such a situation, how can you arrive at conclusion that there was a
possibility of bridging the approaches in a draft joint document? If this is
correct and if what the Prime Minister has stated here Is alsg correct, then
something more, which has not been revealed here, might have taken place
during the discussions and we have been kept in dark on that point.
Otherwise, there is no meaning in saying that there was a possibility of
bridging the gap in our approaches,

My next point is that the spokesman of the Govemment had
repeatedly said that we will proceed on the basis of the Simla and Lahore
agreements. After the Summit, we had even gone to the extent of saying
that we will not start our further discussions on the basis of Agra tatks. We
will begin afresh from Simla and Lahore Agreements. At the same time,
Shrimati Sushma Swaraj, while speaking yesterday said: Unlike in the
settlements in Tashkent and Simla, we have not surreandered our interests,
We have coms out with a fixed deposit. Kindly see what is their attitude
regarding the Tashkent Agreement and the Simla Agreement. If it is the
opinion of the Government that the Tashkent Agreement and the Simla
Agreement were a sumrender, then why should they say that they will
proceed on the basis of the Simla Agreement, and not on the basis of the
Agra talks? Therefore, i would like to say that the spokesman of the
Government has been taking differant positions with regard to thase things.
its manifestations are different and here also during the discussions here,
the Govermment has manifasted itself differently,

Now, | come to another point,

Of course, on the Agra Summit, there were differences on almost
all the issues. On this Summit, opinions are being expressed as to why
should we talk or have a dialogue with Pakistan. Some sections of.the
ruling party, especially the major party in the NDA, have expressed the view
that in the present conditions when Pakistan is taking such an attitude, we
should not continue dialogue with them. Soma people even went to the
extent of saying that we should prove that we are strong enough to face
any situation created by Pakistan. What do they mean by that? A basic
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question arises in our mind. Should we continue this dialogue with a view to
bringing about a settlement on Kashmir and other disputes? According to
me, the dialogue should continue.

Regarding the Kashmir issue, we will have to deal with Pakistan.
We will have to face terrorists. We all know that for the iast three years,
especially, the Home Minister has been repealedly making statements that
we will put an end to terrorist activities with an iron hand and we would
suppress it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have taken ten minutes.
SHRI J. CHITHARANJAN: | am concluding, Sir.

On the one side, we are making toll promises. On the other, killings
of ordinary people are going on. Therefore, we will have tc check this,
Another thing which | would like to point out is, it is necessary for us to win
over the confidemce of the people in Kashmir, i am of the opinion that we
have not succeeded in this. To some extent, they are alienated from us.
Why did it happen? Wea will have to examine it. There is an article -- article
370 in our Constitution. What is our attitude towards it? Are we standing by
that? On the basis of this article, are we prepared to have a talk with those
who are in power in Kashmir and arrive at a reasonable understanding? |
do not know whether the Goverrment is initiating such an action,
Therefore, | request the Government to ensure that the people of Kashmir
are wen over. Thank you.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Now, Mr. Kutdip Nayyar. | would like to inform the
hon. Members that we have about 15 speakers on this discussion. The list
of speakers is to be completed today. The Prime Minister would reply on
Monday, 13" August after the Question Hour. It the House agrees, we will
sit through lunch hour and continue with this discussion. After the Private
Members' Business is over, we will resume the discussion,

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Yes.

SHRI SURESH PACHOURI (Madhya Pradesh) : Yes, Sir. Today, we
can finish the discussion by skipping funch hour s0 that on Monday, the
FPrime Minister can repiy to the debate.

SHR! KULDIP NAYYAR (Nominated): Mr. Chairman, Sir, | don't
think that the Agra Summit has failed. The very fact that both the leaders
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Shri Atal Bihari Vajpayee, Prime Minister of Ingia and Gen. Musharraf met, |
think, that itself was an achievement. And the fact that they are going to
meet in future whether at the United Nations or later, | think, is a plus point.

Where, | think, the Government has failed is, in not properly
communicating to the media what was going on. Where is that declaration
or statement that Jaswant Singhji said was written in Punjabi English and he
initialled it? Maybe it was Rajasthani English! | think the Foreign Affairs Office
did not handle the media property. Communication i8 an art. You can
formulate a policy, the best of policies. But, if you are not able to pervage,
if you are not able to convey it, then, what is the use?

Now, the Foreign Affairs Minister and the Prime Minister have said
certain things, some were here, some were outside, some were at the
various BJP meetings. | wish this had been known to us earlier. What has
happened is, since these things weré not available to us, we have written
on the basis of certain things which were inferred or which we heard. It is
true that, now, some other opinion is being created. But | can tell you, with
all humility, to Jaswantji, that the impression which we bhave created,
wrongly or rightly, is going to stay with the people because printed word is
very much honoured and respected hera. 1 think the failure of the
Government has been not 1o take the people into confidence or at least not
to tell us what was happening, which they have done now.

[ The Deputy Chairman in the Chair ]

| have been following this subject for many years., | have coms to
this conclusion that | do not think that the two Governments are going to
solve this problem. | think this problem of Kashmir is not a territorial
problem. This is an ideological problem,; ideological, in the sense that
Pakistan insists on having the Valley, and that is only because it is Muslim
populated. | remember, when | was with Atalii in that bus to Lahore, there
was a breakfast given to Sardar Prakash Singh Badal, the Punjab Chief
Minister, by Nawaz Sharief. He suggested to him at the breakfast meeting,
“Sardarji, you can take Ladakh, Buddhist, Jammu, Hindu, and give us the
Valley, Muslim population, and that is the end of the matter.” Sardarji Badal
Saheh kept quiet. But | intervened and said, "Sir, you can take the whole
Jammu and Kashmir, Bul this time, the criterion is not going to be religion.
The basis of any wype of settlement is not going to be religion because |
have seen Partition. | have come through that.® How many lakhs of people
weare killed? | hope that our External Affairs Minister and our Prime Minister
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1.00 P.M.

must have conveyed to Pakistan that as far as this problem is concerned, it
will never be settled on the basis of religion. Though, sometime, | wonder,
because there are talks of trifurcation of the State, by the RSS or some
other people. ...{Interruption)...

SHRI T. N. CHATURVEDI: Why do you bring in the RSS?

SHRI KULDIP NAYYAR: Some such organisation. They talk of
trifurcation. To my mind, this matter can be settied in two ways,

Firstly, people to people contact must take place. | am glad that
the Government of India has taken some steps which have eased the
rastrictions on visas. 8ut, | am surprised that, while, Shri Jaswant Singh has
taken so many steps, he has not lifted the ban on newspapers and books.
Why don't you lift the ban on newspapers and books? You have done a
good thing. You lift the ban unilateraity. Let their newspapers come here.
Otherwise, these are being unloaded here and printed, Why do we have
restrictions on newspapers and books? | hope the Minister will consider this
thing seriously. When you meet the people in Pakistan, you will realise their
compulsions. These pacple have been under martial law or some other kind
of law for almost thirty years. Their society is not like our sociaty. It is not
iike our open society. They are afraid to talk. So, we have to take some
steps whereby we draw those people to our side. Some of us maka an
effort, But when we maks an efforl, we are misunderstood here, because,
this is the usual line followed by the people on this side. Let the
intelligentsia come, iet doctors, lawyers, jounalists and common men meset.
That will generate some kind of goodwill, and all our problems will be easier
to solve. When | am coming to the people, | am talking of the people of
Jammu and Kashmir, We have made certain commitments to them, When
Jammu and Kashmir joined the Union of India, certain promises were made.
They acceded to us only three subjects, that is, Defence, Foreign Affairs
and Communications, Over the years, that autonomy of theirs has been
comroded. We have taken more powers. Through the Assembly or through
the Governor, we have taken more subjects, | am of the opinion that we
shall have to go back to the same position, and | do not agree with the
Home Minister that we cannot go back to the pre-1853 position. | think, if
we have to win the confidence of the people of Kashmir, we will have to go
back to whet they acceded to us. The Union has no right to say: * Look
here, now, the time has passed. You cannot have it." After all, artilce 370 of
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the Constitution assured this thing. Madam, one mora point | want to makse.
| am very happy to know that the Prime Minister and the Foreign Affairs
Minister have said again and again that we shall not tolerate cross-border
militancy. | think, this is a comect stand, because, m the name of cross-
border militancy, murders are being committed. Some mercenaries are
coming, some fundamentalists are coming and killing the innocent people. |
want thal some intellectuals in Pakistan or some columnists in Pakistan
should make an effort in this direction to find out how this situation is being
communalised and how Hindus are being picked up and killed. | think, i
those people are given tha opportunity 10 speak, they will say s0. But it is
not happening because, they don't have that kind of freedom which exists
here. (Time Bell} Madan,, | speak very rarely, and here also, you are ringing
the bell,

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: | am ringing the bell because there are
stil some speakers, and Mr. Jaswant Singh wil taks the floor.
.{interruptions)... When | am speaking, you must listen to me.

SHRI KULDIP NAYYAR: | am sory.

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: | have to make an announcement. | am
not just speaking like that. The Minister has to speak at 1.30 PM. So, |
have to accommodate two, three other speakers. That is why | was trying
to tell you this thing.

o yordiy v ;. AW AR A ¥n e dicw At R

Let me make one more point, A criticism has been made of the Indian
media, which is very unfair, When in Agra, for 34 hours, there was nothing,
not a word from the External Affairs Ministry, what you people were doing,
what the Press was doing.

After all, they are readers. They have their own audience. This is
where the Ministry is to blame. But | have not been able to understand
why the Prime Minister did not take the Indian editors into confidence.
indian editors could have talked 1o them before and after the talks. | recall,
and | shall sit down, that Lal Bahadur Shastri was going to Tashkent, |
happened to be his Press Secretary. He called the editors and placed all
cards on the table. He took them into confidence because when it used to
be Haji Pir Titwal, whether they would be given to Pakistan or not, he toid
them, and once he was not able to persuade them, he told them, "Today,
there wouild be a pressure from the Soviel Union, and | may not be able to
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do what you are saying.” He explained it to them. | think, that way, he
was able to take the people into confidenca. Similarly, | wish this
Government would be a little more transparent and take some people into
confidence, After all, there are s0 many people amongst the journalists who
belong to his party, or who are having the same point of view. Let those
people be taken into confidence. At least, something should come out. Let
me say, at the end, let us not leave this path of dialogue. | know it is very
difficult. | know Pakistan being so intransigent that, probably, sometimes,
you may lose patience, but, if we have a neighbour like this, we have to live
with it, and we have to talk to it. The only thing is, let us stand on
principles, let us stand on basics, and that is that we will not budge on the
ideological point, and that we will not allow the cross-border militancy.to go
on. Thank you very much, Madam,
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gt it A w2 wrd T a3 IER | NA Ay frw, IRE B W W AR UEed
IR 50 Wi F P NFTTH §er ) 9w @ MY, g b R A diuee SRf
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forn, ifRRdw &=t ¥ o)
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7% g9feT f& g1 50 Ot & o e A W gided arm aR € S ') S @
TEwd &1 I Adf NI N B UIS T AFS U<5S d WY | Arwandt @
frdt e o <G & aus; § TE a1 W) g, IF 9 I § [ -

FeH gH ol & g e AfeE,
TERR R A e 3 e |
A g7 fawra R wiEA-fafrer R oRe fafrex ¥ Aoz &1 gw i Q1A
ad sl qonf¥w FEW | JHEd off 7 gNE @ §, ¥ 8% Fdide, 9 geer
wRA e & Afa sl e arse @1 R 5w Airewd & Fifde 98 @ aite -
dreaa ¥ fav po @™ R Tavw e« g,
A A T RS e a g o wd S

ARy, 34 aR ¥ A 77 FEW 5 9 oy ok 9ra o el H foww 3w
HieR 9 ) YEH-9T SRR TSR ga 7Y, SIRTTH B when-wged @1 Wi S
g8 T T T0F A W @A iR wH AR AR 9= BT BN 2, 99 dRra-
T-FTTE F FEH @ Fargl A TR SR 99 M0 FER B 4 sAfhhTs Jiet
FIR HT g 0| T & ¥ A a5 W wEew 99 ¢ {6 eRfE @t 5 9 o, a8
AR BT §5o0 Ui

HEE, ¥ W A P AT @S g9 § 7' SEm F e srha A
IR A-@ @ B R e F A FIfm B R sud Ty g oo
A amd = Rarga & off ok o gar 38l dmfese gadie 2, ouwl aed
31 & fay SR S Ky H1 | @) G99 997 FF I T7 A W Rygwm
W FAAT B U TETE, S9F wodrd wET By Y 58 T @ OE-FTR e
& Al 981 ) @M B UF TST Aol TR T T IR Rl B WWER B A I8
4351 AF A FA MY
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afle g 1947 & we 9w gERn sOfdE A e o s BRI
fEm anft st HaR 3T fdaniz s @ A1 A TR &7 TS T
T8 e e w1 e e £, ax uErTon of ¥ Rl ¥ w5l aEer A A
g sis T e, dEe W A Swe aEdn R, W oEiR 3 srdweh
INW opa o frd o @ A o afcs Pges Avw § s N g A
AW R A w39 R % RN aE @ AR A @ e
v e iR A PR I Mt T o Ham st a @
2 A avx e fvar wrm &1 399 7o R off B o, w'a W G A
areft, 9 ama & sigon gy B A oo A W fw o @ A9 wim
T T 1 ' AR A v quen e £, orrda ot awi ande e §,
P TF TR o e A AR A R ¢, e R wwR o FEA A #
% 353 +f fEar Som | ' AR wEd £ 5 gEe wew o @i, 9 W wEw 3
0 SNSRI A A% ¥ & afERFa-370 ¥ ara i o 3wl f
A I F A e & @ 2 e A tFged A vl i s o

it & yad R aow T vm S @ e @ smela F),
g & |y § an, § e oeE e €| g% Iefi @ R e e e
o o=t o el ol aEdv § F-A-9 19 RV d 3N FeERl ) aEa aeA
¥ R § alv w wegrea e A A oA 5 afia d o s
s yuw avi TO wras @ ') . (wwa B 6d)...

x5, & IR TR g g FER o A § gEfar ar-ie e W
e ana & Dow| 7o o Wl € S § I & w9 @ e £

FrRgly c vviiy ¥ R A F A R #) vl wEw T AR R R
ot s vile © Agw, o 2@ A9 g% £ ARl gEY A w0
TqEAafY ;. 3T A W R k)

"ArfamaviR fanisvwma i andawmaa s & 5 g0
T W on Fvil 4, TN T Redh R 1906 § @am g, e areE wRA
ey A, o0 @ § v 2 wn o e T &, Tw eten R
I IBTER £ A TN I3 ofRam & R ofeErt e od f ow ofswm W
W® ‘g AR AR men agA A F T, FOA-TAN ) a9 o A T iR
afFEra ¥ ¥ 4 A A o s B g ¥ faers | afve 50 A ¥ a
N a-meit #t amm A, sefae IR Jaemm Tad A g Rodee
O a% qawt w 5 AN Jord wwa a1 37X IR & fag agw P
Ty FhdTw ¥ Ay v wv BT A gmre wwm gt A oy

T Transiteration ol the speech in Persian Script is availshie in the Hindi version of the debae,
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FEY FU O a1z s & AN gx uigdl € & g A gvaon, vwn gon & aw
&0 @ | P T ¥ A @ F @ gol R

THE MINISTER OF EXTERNAL AFFAIRS AND THE MINISTER OF
DEFENCE (SHRI JASWANT SINGH): Madam Deputy Chairman, above alt,
mindful of the fact that the Summit itself having taken place in mid-July, |
made as extensive a statement on behalf of the Government, as | could
mindful of the fact that within a week thereof, the Parliament was meeting
on 17" of July. Thereafter, on the very first occasion, the hon. Prime
Minister made a statement in the House -- it you recollect, the House had
been adjourned on 23" July due 10 condolences -- on the 24" of July itself,
Since 24™ of July, in one House or the other House, this issue has been
under discussion. It is now almost three weeks that we have been engaged
in examining the Agra Summit in all its ramifications. Most of what there had
to be said, has already been said, commented upon and analysed. There is
a phrase which is quite caiching that we can engage in an analysis that
carries us forward to paralysis. Without attampting to do so, | will
endeavour, as best as | can, to answer the substantial issues, the
fundamentals also, and address myseif to the points of criticism that the
hon. Members, during their observations have made about the conduct of
the Government or the approach of the Government. However, Before | do
s0, Madam, there are some haphazard observations that, | think, is my duty
and function to address, Dr. Manmohan Singh opened the discussion as
the Leader of the Opposition, | was very struck, Madarn, by the manner, by
the words of approbation he had for the visiting dignitary and his conduct,
and equally strong words of condemnation that he chose to employ for me,
as also for the Government on the conduct of the Agra Summit as also on
the larger conduct of foreign policy. | was struck and without taking to
much time, | do wish to share, | do wish to remind the hon. House, that the
distinguished and learned Dr. Manmohan Singh in his intervention, used
these words of approbation for the visiting dignitary, amongst others, 'single
mindeq’, ‘purposeful', 'ruthless clarity’, ‘skilfully’, ‘not naive or frivolous’,
‘master of media arrangement', ‘highly skitful' and ‘even to hijack the
agenda'. This is a very generous praise indeed. | have no doubt in my
mind with his characteristic generosity and large heartedness when he
chosa to so describe the visiting dignitary, surely, it could not have been
only on account of the fleeting mestings that he might have had with him or
what he has read -- But | have no doubt that despite what he has read of
him, this equity of his perception and his mind, the phraseology that he
chose, he chose this is how the visiting dignitary is best assessed.

237



RAJYA SABHA [1D0 August, 2001]

However, by whatever method he has arrived at this assessment, | do beg
1o differ and | beg to differ on the fundamentals, particularty when | see,
when | reflect on-the severity of his observations against my conduct of the
country's foreign policy during the last iwo or three years -- he speciﬁed
during the last two or three years -- and the phraseclogy that he has
employed to condemn me on the conduct of the foreign palicy, | was struck
by the contrast. | do not have to repeat the eulogies that he heaped on
General Pervez Musharraf. | have applied mysell and addressed myself to
the criticism that the iearned, the Leader of the Opposition made because
he charged me, Madam, with an absence of studied application of mind,
long-term thinking, | have not the attitude or the mental equity of the Leader
of Opposition, but to charge me with an absence of studied application of
mind is very severe criticism, and he said, because of me there is no long
term underpinning to country's foreign policy, and he cited some instances.
| can very easily elaborate on the instances.

He said, “l lack conceptual clarity®; not just conceptual clarity, but |
have no clarity about our immediate objectives. And, of course, inadequate
preparation; again, | am devoid of a clear thinking. There seems to be a
great deal of confusion in my mind. But the basic confusion, as the Leader
of the Opposition calls it, is about our objectives, and he charges me and
the Government with lack of pro-active diplomacy. It is not for you or for
me to score any debating points. These are substantial issues. And these
are substantial charges. It is my duty to address them, very briefly, as best
as | can.

On the question of long-term under-pinning, studied application of
mind, conceptual clarity it is roughly the same thing, in one fashion or the
other may t, with due regard 1o the learning of the Leader of the Opposition,
submit to him for consideration that, in major foreign policy challengas,
problems or issues that the country today confronts are a legacy, principally,
primarily, of the successive Congress Governments, starting from the
invasion of Jammu and Kashmir in 1947-487 It is not for me to remind Dr.
Manmohan Singh that this legacy continues. Who did what in which year?
Because, Dr. Manmgohan Singh alsg charged that we lack an approach on
Jammu and Kashmir. May | remind the learned Leader of the Opposition
that, when he was a Member of the Cabinet, the incidents at Dargah
Hazraibal or the buming down of Charar-e-Sharief took place? These are
also incidents. These are challenges to India which | have and occasion to
point out and | had written about them, In the three principal foreign policy
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challenges, Jammu and Kashmir, Sinp-Indian border dispute, IPKF, we do
believe, these were great errors of conceptual clarity that have resulled in
the country, and successive generations of the country, having to deal with
these issues. | have said so, on a number of earlier occasions, that it is
possible to address the issues relating to internal management of the polity
of the country in a reasonably short-time frame. But errors on foreign policy
atflict the successive generations to handle. And, if there are examples to
be seen, these examples are really best illustrated by what the country has
had to do for the past fifty years in the case of Jammu and Kashmir, what
the country has had to do from the mid-fifties in the case of China-india
relationship and, of course, | continue to believe that the IPKF was a great
mistiake that not simply cost us the lives of our own soldiers, but it is the
only instance when we had 1o bring back our forces. However, let that
pass; because we contsiue to dwell ypon the mistakes of each other. The
challenges of today are very grave. The Leader of the Opposition, | have ng
doubt in my mind, has exercised his wisdom and his learning in approbation
in the words of praise that he has used for the visiting dignitary.

And | take seriously the words of criticism that he has used against
me. | will address, Madam, as best as | can, and as God has given me the
ability to assess afresh, and | have, since he used these phrases, attempted
to do so, 1 am unable 10 convince myseif that | lack apphcation of mind -- |
might lack in other aspects: | do not have his great learning; but, so far as
appilication of mind is concerned, | do try and apply my mind; that | do not
have t00 much mind, is possibie; but about application ... finterruptions). ..

| will come to the substantial issues about preparation, agenda and
all other aspects in a minute. These are the other peripheral issues. |
regeet very much that | was not herg because Dr. Karan Singh, in his
Intervention, said, *The Minister is not here. | trust he is listening to what |
have to say, on the television". He had some kind words to say. But he
said that 1 made an error in anncuncing the DGMQO's visit. Now, | had,
Madam, then submitted a request, both te the Chair as also to the Leader
of the Opposition, that a meeting had been called on Jammu and Kashmir
by the Home Minister, where | was required to be present. And | hadn't
withdrawn to my chamber to watch as substantial and meaningful an
intervention as that of Dr. Karan Singh, who said that he was a part of
history. Indeed, he had been the Maharaja of Kashmir, And when he
intervenes, it is my duty to be present here. But, as far as the Director
General of Miitary Operations is concerned, there were three
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announcements made unilaterally by the Government an the 4™ of July, on
the 6™ of July and on the 9" of July. The announcement of the 4™ of July
related substantially to aspects that Shri Kuldip Nayyar referred to, about
enabling people to people contacts, trade and commerce. S0, we said,
*Students can come; scholarships are offered, easier visas so that there is
people-to-people contact. Fifty lines were to be identified by commerce.
Fishermen were {0 be raleased. Alsc that, in future, the Coast Guard wouid
have instructions, when fishermen so transgress. Similarly, on the 6" of
July, we announced that the DGMQO would seek the convenience of his
counterpart and visit Pakistan s¢ that we can move forward on the gains
that we have made, so far as the relativa stability on the Line of Control is
concerned. Plus, wa will initiate actions in regard to confidence building
measures about nuclear issues. This was on the 6". And, on the 8" of
July, it was the opening of Srinagar-Muzaffarabad-Attari, aiso Manabu, again
peopla-to-people related. Now, it is not, as Dr. Karan Singh says, that | had
instructed tha Director General of Military Opserations to go the next day. |
had said, normally, they confer with each other on the telephone on
Tuesday, and when the announcement was made, tha talk was due to take
place the next day, and that they will talk to each other the next day. Waell,
the rest is now history. Pakistan did not respond positively to it. We have
announced that these measures that we had taken remain in position and
wea will continue to move forward on these measures. Whenever we can
implement them unilaterally, we will do so. But when we need Pakistan to
cooperate with us, it is our expectation that they will do so. Now, | wish to
take up an isslUe relaling to what Shri Kapil Sibal and also Shri Janeshwar
Mishraji mentioned. That is about foreign hand and third party intervention.

Mr. Sibal averred that there was a foreign hand; that this initiative
has been taken on account of pressures from the United States of America.
Then, he cited a statement and also the chronology -of the dates. | do wish
to submit, Madam, --and { have said so earlier too --- and | say this with a
certain degree of trepidation because vary eminent jurists and practitioners
of law are Members of this House -- the Houses of Legislatures are not
court of law. When hon. Members who practice law as a vocation or
profession, benefit us with their views in the Chambers of the Legislature,
with great humility, | submit to them that it is best not to put across a case
as if a legal brief is being argued. This is essentially a House, the main
purpose of which is, of course, political and other aspects. So, Mr. Sibal
cited a statement made by the Spokesman of the White House on June, 18,
and said 'before the formal announcement was made, the Prime Minister,
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when asked on 19", had said such and such, the Spokesman had said
such and such; therefore, as in a criminal law court ha said 'you are guilty,
and you acted under so and so's pressures.’” Let me please clarify, the
question that was put to Mr. Fisher was -- at that time, the Foreign Minister
of Pakistan, my distinguished counterpart, Mr. Sattar; was in Washington --
and this question was put to Mr. Fisher -.-he is here meeting wilth
Ambassador Condoleeza Rice, and if the President is planning to drop by --
and the record here says (Laughter from the Press} -- 15 the Foreign
Minister of India planning ta drop by; and also, how much role the President
is playing in the upcoming summit between India and Pakistan? No, of
course, because, yet again | did not know that it is a standard practice for
lawyers to engage in suppressio veri and suggestio falsi ... finterruptions).,.

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI {Maharashtra) : Madam, | wish 1o protest
this. My friend can ssttle his scores with Mr. Kapil Sibal but please don't
disgrace lawyers..fintarruptions). ..

SHRI JASWANT SINGH: I am not disgracing
lawyers ..(Intarruptions)... Madam, he is a distinguished jurist,

SHRI RAM JETHMALANL | do not bother whether | am a
distinquished jurist or not . (interruptions).. . but don't disgrace the
profession ., (interruptions)...

SHRI JASWANT SINGH: No, | don’t. Now, here is what was said.
My distinguished counterpart, the Foreign Minister of Pakistan, was in
Washington, and was due to meet me shorily, Please also remember it
was June 18 and Washington's time is ten-and-a-half hours behind the
Indian time. So, Mr. Fisher said, first of all, the meeting has not yet taken
place, that the meeting between Condolseza Rice and Sattar was to be
held in the afternoon. Afternoon in Washington means evening in India 18",
Angd, if there are any drop- bys, | will do my best to let you know that the
Administration is committed to building a mutually beneficiai bilateral
retationship with Pakistan. The Administration is looking forward to a return
to democracy that will permit fully normalised relations and the United
States of America fully supports the upcoming 14" July meeting between
India and Pakistan. Now, the whole thesis that was built by the hon. Shri
Kapil Sibal was because the US Spokesman said on June 18" that July 14"
Is the meeting; therefore, india acted under the pressures of United States
of America, because the formal date had not yet been announced.
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et me pisase clarify, Madam, that thers were two sats of datas
that were under consideration, ie., 7" to 9" of July -- because those two
windows had been suggested and 14™ to 16" of July. | had let it be known
that these are the windows, and, Pakistan, of course, knew that these are
the two windows that have been spoken of. Shri Kapil Sibal also said that
during this period | was as he graphically put it flying between Dslhi and
Washington, as indeed was the Principal Secretary and the National Security
Advisor. | was not actually there. | was, in fact, in Australia during those
dates which have been mentioned, which is quite tar, geographically, from
here, and, otherwise, from United States of America. Before | wert to
Austratia, | had lal it be known that the proposed dates can be and il be
finalised only after | had called on the Prime Minister, who w.c then
convalescing in Mumbai. The doctors had said that he would be < erated
on the 7™ of June. The doctors had advised that, at least, for one month,
he is not to move. They said, "If you can avoid it, don't have the Summit
mesting on 7" of July." However, | did not wish to confirm about the non-
availability of those window of dates, until | had a chance to go and meet
the Prime Minister myself, | did not go and meet the Prime Ministar then.
On the 7" of June, he was operated on. In the first week itself, Madam, it
was very difficult to go and trouble him about such issuss. It was a major
surgery that he had undergone. |, therefore, visited Mumbai, to call on the
Prime Minister, and discussed these issues with him only on the 15" of
June. However, the proposed dates, ie., 7" to 9" of July, as already
cleared, would be very difficult to adhere to. | returned on the 16",
Pakistan was formally informed of the dates that were proposed, fe, 14",
15th and 6™ of July, on the 18" of June itself. On 18" of June, Pakistan
was formally informed. And on 18" of June, Pakistan's High Commissionar
confirmed that these dates of 14™ to 16th July were conwenient. On 18" of
June, Mr. Abdus Sattar was in Washington, No doubt, the High
Commissioner here and the Pakistan Foreign office in Isfamabad knew about
it. Though, of course, they did not, in other regards, had the same
cormmunication with thew Foreign Minister, but in this regard, they certainly
had the communication, They informed him that the dates that are being
spoken of are 14" July. Before this meeting with Condoleeza Rice, Mr.
Abdus Sattar had already had his mesting with Mr, Colin Powell. So, the
dates of 14™ July to 16™ July, which we formally announced on 18" or,
perhaps, on 18™ were formally announced by Pakistan in Islamabad, and
were known to their Foreign Minister in Washington. There is no great
mystery, there is gertainly no third hand in it, there is not any third pary in
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2.00 P.M,

it, and certainly there is no foreign hand in it. This Government, this Prime
Minister, certainly requires the proving of no credentials, Madam, when it
comes to not cleaving 10 any kind of foreign presSure, be it the United
Stales of America or any other country. The entire history of post-May,
1998 till now, i.e., July, 2001, if nothing else, exemplifies that it is not under
pressure that we worked. Madam, there were two other points. Mr. Sibal
has made one other observation, and the same observation was made by
some other hon. Member,

Ons more observation was made by Mr, Sibal. This observation
was also made by some other hon. Members. He said, "whereas the
spokesman of the Ministry of External Affairs on 16" spoke of
disappointment, the Minister said: NoO, we aré not disappointed with this
meeting.* | do not know how he worked out these two together. Here is
what my Joint Secretary {External Publicity) said on 16" "l am disappointed
to inform you, ladies and gentlemen oOf the media, that though the
commeancement of the process and a beginning on the journey has taken
place, the destination of an agreed joint statement has not been reached. It
is now very late and | do not wish to go into any detailed slaboration. We
would be holding a fulifledged Press conference at this very venue at 10
hours tomorrow  morning.” So, the disappointment which the Joint
Secretary expressed was about the absence of an agreed document.

| cannot recall whether | said the same thing on the 17". But, on
a subsequent date -- it must be two or three days later at a Hindi interview
IR | ge1 Tl A FE f Ru-auEes g @ el R ) e T ogw A
TN D A Su wH-3m AW gy *E ¥, gy 95 3 v 5 g5 Prw 21 @
~anft aw mw amer @, A A T 4 P A g, f Ru-adiges g ok &R faw-
IUECE P AR A 99 99 BIE iex @O A AR A o o aug ura € e
uite & | wes &S A T &

| will come to other issues in a minute.

About cross-border terrorism, Mr. Sibal spent a great deal of time
in legalistic hair-splitting that it cannot be cross-border terrorism, becauss it
is cross-LoC; and LoC is not a border etc. etc. Of course, | know it is not
a border. We have always called it ‘cross-border terrorism'. But, | do not
know if the hon. Member, Shri Sibal realises that he has actually given voice
to an argument that has been given by the Foreign Minister of Pakistan. |
reject this notion totally that simply on legalistic hair-splitting, since LoC is
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not border, therefore, what is it that the Government is talking about. 1 am
sura, Mr. Sibal was not inspired by what my distinguished counterpart, Mr,
Sattar had said. But | do appeal to him that, in the enthusiasm for legafistic
hair-splitting, this kind of an approach does not help in dealing with the
menace that we face collectivsly.

| do wish to address very briefly S wfl% ®Eg 3 sargr about
autonomy, about Pak occupied Kashmir. FR T=i A9IH €64 4 W9 8w
Higg 9 90 @ @ TTA A6 A9l 4 P81 91 fb amw Ig-svik o IRa 2
A=A & &g &1 W 7Y TEe &, AP g3 B B PR F SFE e oty
HG H WE A B F Iw N UF TYuss FER §, 97 9” g9 &),
e &), w2 frafie &), 9 weEmm &0 &), o oo O ® % 9% &, T
T 49 €1

THE LEADER QOF THE OPPOSITION {DR. MANMOHAN SINGH):
Chakral has never been a part of Jammu and Kashmir.

SHRI JASWANT SINGH: It is a northern area. But it was also
wrongly occupied. And the Shakhasgam Valley. These were clearly pointed
out to Gen. Parvez Musharraf f& oi& affequrgs FwIR & Ix #, g @t 25 @
AR vdEel A @ieh el €, $IS we-yEel el e wfe |

SHRI SHARIEF-UD-DIN SHARIQ (Jammu and Kashmir} : Their High
Court has set it asids.

st wda fig N &, 9% e 3 W o 2 ARt Rare ofvas
o1 fyemn A€ £ um 9% T WE PEA @ b @ qga " qag F o &
e off % o»ET 5 oy 39 awe @ o & O g9 o 3w @ 9 e S e
O a1 HA QSTHAT B WIS S-SR @ | e B ey Wee g8 3w AR
A3 FE gy & W uw o aler T fF § 8 ey wise o o &= 2, 9 97
afrer &7 &, S9F AN A $U g, W §A9 K 9% $F 9P & (& URT 370 | 9
g o1 o gard & A8 &) S F an § weh s 5 weia wiie g
g} W AN g AEHa ¥, I -G °9d 181 &, IH-FER @1 S R g9l g,
gafay & WERG FE ¥ a4 gaeY Ve & aR A7 ) @A arf| | have
no doubt in my mind that the Home Minister and the Cabinet will be
addressing this issue.

sad%

Sir, | must very briefly, because | have said so in the other House
and | do not wish to tax the patience of the hon. Members who, on a
Friday afternoon have honoured me by being here. But on India and
Pakistan long-term relationship | have said so in the United Nations General
Assembly, | have said so in public. [ have said so in print, not simply in
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some of my speeches, | have said that what Pakistan has to come tc terms
with and decide is what kind of long-term relationship it wants with india.

What do | mean by Pakistan having to come to terms on what kind
of long-term relationship does it want with india, Madam, it is clear, the
Government is clear in its mind, that Pakistan has adopted, continuss to
pursue and practise a position of compulsive and perpetual hostility to India
because [ndia's concept of nationhood is the very anti-thesis of what Pakistan
i attempting to build as its nationhood. | have said, we stand for civic
nationalism; the fundamental of civic nationalism is, imespective of your faith,
your calling, vour caste, your creed or colour, it is civic nationalism which
inspiras India‘'s nationalism. Secuiarism is the root of it. The Prime Minister has
said s0 many times At & @ o= & gft & A% ® fran &) We don't
have to learn propound secularism, or, the propounded secularism. On the
other hand, Pakistan pursues compulsive hostility and perpetual hostility,
because it has adopted the two nation theory which we cannot accept. It has
adopted it as a mears of buiding and keeping its nationhood alive. This
hostility, two nations R<-gaaam sa-sem €, 4 o8 o1, ¢ IR $F g9 |
3 F9-FER N FER # ), the Valiey of Srinagar, you claim because in the
Valley of Srinagar reside my citizens who subscribe to the noble faith of Islam
and the percentage of population is 85 per cent, 90 per cent. | will cile you
instances of distncts in India, in other parts of India, where too, rmy citizens
have similar population, whether it is Rampur or in Tamil Nadu or in Kerala or
in Bihar, and what am | toc do? And | said this at Agra. What should | do with
those districts? Should | put all those districts on a raiiway rack and send
them by train to Pakistan? How am | to accept it? | am not able to accept it.

This is the fundamental fracture. This fracture ¢an be repaired only
if we enable the people of India and the people of Pakistan to relate to each
other. There are millions whose relatives live across the border. Till today,
my relatives continue to live in Sind. There are millions of citizens of
Pakistan whose relatives continue to live here. Mr. Kuldip Nayyar spoke of
people. | believe it will take time, The more the people are able to relate to
each other, #¥e% @WoM & WY #0714 87 wd & el U@ gEr 4, o Afgd
Wt OfEam & Taa Fa # n-Feik 1 e &, 98 A @ arer 3 A T

| have no difficulty in sharing an experience of ming, within a
minuta. A friend of mine had some visitor from Pakistan. Thera was a
young, newly married, girl from Pakistan who came 1o visit some of her
relatives in Bombay. She was staying with the friend of mine. As Bombay
girls would do, early in the morning, she put on her jogging shorts and
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jogging shoes and went out on Marine Drive or wherever, to have a morning
jog. She asked the friend of ming, "aR, WIAA, IN R & HA &2 3y @
BIC-BId Mox gy 936 W A9 Wl € " T8 & {6 "R, g @« &, Why
are you astonished?" @ SR Feifs "ev M e cwt g ot e o ®&6 " |

| do believe, | have often said so. Madam, | have said so0 in public
meetings. India, Pakistan and Bangladesh are of the same womb. How
much closer can you be? You cannot be enemies. 4 U & 1@ & w0 &
afpa Persuasion in Pakistan is =8}, ea tes @ & & &1

The Foreign Minister of Pakistan once said, "The problem is with
Punjabi.* | beg a pardon. Either the Leader of the Opposition or the
distinguished journalist, Mr. Kuldip Nayyar, may find fault with the Foreign
Minister, He said, " do want Pakistan 10 belong to Arabia, but what am |
to do with the Funjabi language?”. This is what he said. This is the
fundamental. How can this fundamentat be gapped? This fundamental can
only be gapped over ttme. This fundamental can only be gapped with
patience. 1 am very clear about two approaches, both of which the
Government is trying. You challenge Iindia militarily; and that challenge will
not only be met, it will be defeated and it will be done time and again. But
we bear no enmity to the people ot Pakistan. | have said this also in public
meetings. What do we desire? We covet not one inch of Pakistan's territory.
We have, by God's Grace, enough issues to deal with. We do not want
issues to be exported from Pakistan to India. We want a politically-at-ease
Pakistan. No matter how you decide your internal arrangement, we would
like you to be democratic. But we cannot dictate what you should do
yourselves. M, socially, it is a Pakistan thal is not torn within, an
econamically viable Pakistan, it is good for Pakistan, it is good for indo-Pak
relations, it is good for the region. But we cannot do it for Pakistan. What
we can do, we do to the maximum. Therefore, we will continue to do it. On
Jammu and Kashmir, let me make il, again, very clear, Jammu and Kashmir
Is not a territorial dispute.

It is a mistake. After all, why does Pakistan not speak if it is a
territorial dispute of a substantial value or that 38,000 square kms area cf
Ladhak is under the occupation of the Peoples' Repubiic of China? We
address that issue separately. We are dealing with that. We have been
raising our concern that it is not a territorial dispute. It is a dispute over
fundamentals, fundamentals that | have just menticned. The Government i3
very clear in this regard. That is why Jammu and Kashmir is not a cause of
any dispule between India and Pakistan. It is a consequence, and it is a
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consequence cf that mentality. | am convinced by mind that it is not a
cause, it is a consequence. The corrective is in the correction of the
approach towards I|ndia--two-nation theory. Otherwise, Pakistan, elements
within Pakistan contribute. This is how we approach the problem. There is
no ambiguity whatsoever in this regard. Madam, | find that | am taking toc
long. | must hurry up. Now, | come to cross-border terrorism. There is no
compromise with cross-border terrorism. Why do we keep on amphasising
cross-border terrorism? India will simply not accept the conferring upon
cross-border terrorism the kind of legitimacy or a kind of status that
terrorism, as a pro-dialogue negotiating tactics, to be employed by Pakistan.
in regard to pre-dialogur negotiating tactics, | will turn the tap of terrorism
on untii you come anc it with me, and if | find that the progress of the
dialogue is satisfactory, then | will turmn the tap of terrorism down or turn it
up the minute in fundamentals, | accept or agree to confer upon Cross-
border terrorism this Kind of legitimacy or status, as a pre-dialogue
negotiating tool or '=ctics, and compromising with fundamentals. The
Government is very cClear about il. If the hon, Members recollect, on the
1™ of June, 1999, on the eve of the visit of the then Foreign Minister of
Pakistan, Sartaj Aziz, | had said before the Press: *We ask Pakistan to
vacate the aggression, we ask Pakistan to reaffirm the validity of the Line of
Control, abandon hostile propaganda and give up cross-border terrorism.*®
From June 1999, deliberately, and with great sense of purpose, the
Government undertook an international campaign to put cross-border
terrorism on the agenda of international conferences. | do believe that we
have not failed in that regard, and today, the international consciousness In
regard to this kind of terrorism, is much more than ever before. That is why
we continue to emphasise that there wili be no compromise with them.
There cannot be. You are not compromising with violence, You are
compromising with fundamentals, and there is no way that any Government
can compromise with this, leave alone this kind of a thing. These are some
of the fundamentals that | am stating. On Shimla angd Lahore, it was
mentioned that, on the 17" of July, when | addressed the Prass in Agra, |
said that we will carry forward the process. Two days later, tha spokesman
of the Ministry of External Affairs said, the foundation is still in Shimla and
Lahore, Therefore, we ars not speaking in dissonant or separate voices, We
are not. It is very Clear, Madam, that we attempted to discuss anything,
and we discussed anything, and | will come in a moment to this point and
give the chronology of how developments took placa. You cannot, like as |
have said in the other House, confer upon an agreement that was not
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reached or the discussions about that agreement the status, as a
document, that we subscribe to or is inscribed by signatories.

~ Yes, there are some gains, but gains do not replace the
foundations of bilateralism, which is Shimla and Lahore. Therefore, Shimia
and Lahore can simply not be replaced by understandings reached in Agra.
Understandings, by their very nature, can be subjectively interpreted,
selectively interpreted. Therefore, you always have 10 go back to the
fundamentals, Therefore, the Shimla and Lahore understandings will provide
us some help, and help to continue the dialogue process.

| have broadly four points of criticism, QOne was, there was
inadequate preparation. You know, Madam, what | have to say about this
particuiar aspect. Secondly, my good friends in the Opposition bhave
decided that this is a stick to beat the Government with. Fine. The third is
about the media. And the fourth was whether Agra has to be called a
success or a failure.

Let me start with the fourth point because, then, it 15 easier for me
to put in ptace the other three. The success or failure of Agra should not  be
judged against the criteria of a catalyst of the agreed document. Of course,
had there been an agread docurnant, then Agra would have been a success.
That could be the assumption. 50, we assessed the Agra Summit in the
absence of a document! |If there had been a document, then all the ponts
about the preparations, the agenda and the media would not have arisen,
Why was there not a document? Because, we were unable 1o bridge the
gaps on these two fundamentals on Jammu and Kashmir, and on ¢ross-
border terrorism, In the absence of those fundamentals, a document could
not be reacheg. There were also difficuities from the Pakistan side about
Shimla and Lahore. {n the absence of these three fundamentals, which | have
earlier addressed myseif to, how was the Government going tO address or
subscrice 1o any document? Very briefly, the chronology--1 know | am
pressed for time--14" is spent in ceremonials here. We had suggesled that
instead of Delhi we should meet in Goa. From the Pakistan side, a request
came, "No, no, no. For a little while, at least, let me come to Delhit® So, it
was proposed that on 14", the visiting dignitary, the Head of a State, had to
arfive: we would receive him ceremoniously, have lunch with our President,
and we would withdraw to be at Agra. Then the second request came
saying, "Please let me spend a night in Delhi” It is not easy for the host to
keep saying @ #a @fwe The 14" went in cersmonial; 15th, we started
working, | think, at 11 o'clock, if | recollect right. 15'“, at i1 o'clock, once the
work started, there was to be a plenary. The plenary took place, the one 1o
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one went on longer. Al the plenary, the Prime Minister read out from a
prepared text which covered all these issues. The visiting dignitary spoke
from ad hoc notes that he had made in pencil. { am not revealing any
awkward Stale secrets. | do befieve that the Pakistan delegation really did
not know what their leader wanted to do. The full delegation was not aware
of what actually was required. Therefore, all the 15", before everybody rose
for lunch, | proposed that a joint statement be issued to the Press for that
day. It was suggested that | wrote many things with my pencil in hand. | tell
you that on a number of pages there must be my pencil observations.

This is part of the job of drafting, but not always. But when you
come across awkward drafting, there is a tendency 1o do so. | did it and,
in fact, suggested that these two or three lines shouid be issued by both
the sides. That was the statement of the 15" Thereafter, there was no
such thing. It was agreed that the two delegations would meet and work
on the possibilities of a joint declaration or a joint statement. The Indian
team of officials, after the plenary ended--i think it was at 2.30 p.m. oOr 80--
suggested to the Pakistan Officials, ‘Let us meet straightaway, instead of
wasting time over lunch because in the evening there is a visit 10 Taj Mahal
and there is a banquet in the evening*. Thara was only a gap of one hour
when these two Heads of Governments were to meet again. | state, with
due sense of responsibility, that the Pak officials declined to meet because
they had no ciear instructions, We had an alternative draft, if this was not
acceptiable, if this was not right, if there had to be a declaration or a joint
Prass statement or just a joint stalement, completaly unaligned and bland to
substantial issues like a declaration, the Pak Officials said, "We hava no
clear instructions. We have not prepared any document and we cannot
meet”. The meeting finally took place only at 11 o'clock in the night, after
the banquet, on 15". The officials and others, who were assisting the
Foreign Ministers, had worked about till 4.30 in the morning and produced a
document with six square brackets, which werae brackets of disagreement.
The Heads of Governments had agreed 10 meet on 16" in the night at 10.30
or so. The scheduled departure of General Pervez Musharrat was at 2.30
p.m. He was to fly from Agra to Jaipur, from Jaipur to Ajmer, 10 visil
Dargah Shariaf and Gharib Nawaz. He knew that there was lunch in
between; and, between 10.30 and lunch, there was only two-and-a-half
hours. General Musharraf then engaged in an exercise of drafting, with our
Prime Minister, which is never done. The Heads of Governments sat down
and they, perhaps, addressed themselves to substantial issuss. Anyway,
the rest is now history.
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TERE Wed TR IHE A9 o1 wF, R 3 49 v fE ag s v

R, ¥ T a A @ Tw, TN w7 w7 P aow g W A
o MR A IR gEl I A DF X g N Ia € fF qav9 A W R & gvTE
F § & gR-a A TFA T § | W AR TG 79T F W W AF B OEHH TE
grm @ A7 48 ganl 16 aie B TR e wv g wifre g2 | ezl 16

e @t g H WA A 9YNE ot | Fadd e oft, 10-15 e & favo

As regards the preparation, the agenda, there were four sets of
agenda. The Shimla Agresment provides the agenda; the Lahore
Declaration provides the agenda; the composite dialogue provides the
agenda. We proposed alt these, plus, in writing, sent an agenda. But the
visiting Head of State said, "I will deal with the Head of Government and
prepare an agenda myself”. &3 #TH a1, 3 wX™ FEL.. That is why | am
saying, "Yes", and ] said". My distinguished and gallant friend, Gen.
Shankar Roy Chowdhury is here. When Ceneral Pervez Musharral was
often Ziven to iauding his military directness, | did suggest to him, "We are
not entirely absent of military virtues either”,

But there is a fine dividing line between mifilary directness and
military simplicism. In this complexity of issues that diplomacy has often to
address in Jammu and Kashmir taltking about Indo-FPak retsiions and talking
of simple issues., We are talking of complex issues involving people's
sentiments. Tha! is why whern the Prime Minister had gone to Lahore, he
used a phrase that is etched i my memory, I8 g9 g Y FRTE &) a9 &)
2 a8 orwerd @ §% 21 You are addressing issues thal are not simply
legalistic issues. WY UEe BIHM o6 fF o & 99 g &, v 9 A
TEIETE ¥ SR e, "Wede F 9 gl &1 1t is after all an exercise in
English composition. # am} w2 & &1 31 g1 7 9oar & I® W ©C W o
A | VY AEa o 92 A SrTal A g T8 8 §ad | On media, | continue to
hold that the difficulty begins to arrive on 16". | can understand that. | had
the difficulty. The Joint Secretary (External Publicity) and othaer officers had
met... ...[interruptions)... &9 T, ﬁ!‘v‘r e % @™ we g1 Could we have
addressed this differently on the 16’ "7 | was engaged personally as were
my officers. | have explained the compression of time that had taken place
on the 16", | have tried to explain how much we wanted out of this Agra
Summit for the sake of addressing the principal challenge that Ingia and
Pakistan have, re. poverty. Let there be a forward movement. | was
cerlainly addressing myself to finding a way out that, after all, is my job. My
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job is 10 bridge the gaps of perception. My job is to try and arrive at a
position that we can both subscribe to. | should have paid more attention to
media management. Who is responsible for nol paying that attention? | am
responsible. I anybody 1s to be charged with any fault, | am to be charged
with that fault. | do accept my responsibiity. | have learnt and | continue
to hold that issues of high importance cannot be discussed through media
no matter how much the media may hke to play a role nol simply in
formulaling, in  practising, in influencing policy outcomes of complex
negotiations. It 18 not possible. N is simply not possible to do so. |
recognise that wa live in a world of instant communication far different than
earlier instant communication, particularly the wvisual media. | have had
something to do not with media but centainly with information technology
and other issues. The visual media demands, when there are 24 hour news
channels, news after every two minutes and ten minutes. Complex issues
you cannot convert into every ten minutes or two minutes news. Yet this
needs o be met hecause visual media goes inlo everyone's bedroom. Print
media is tomorrow's news. Instant visual media 15 instant news. The
demand was for instant news. That, | expect, was therr prniority. My priority
was somehow to try and bridge the gap and find a position where | could
reach an agreement. [n the process | taiied to fulfil the expectations of the
media. It anyone is responsible, | alone am responsibte, Bul | cannot use
Pakistan as an examplé of how to conduct diplomacy, The breakfast
meeting by Gen. Musharraf has been cited as an example of what Atalji
should have done.

It is not for me to advise the Prime Minister, though | can advise
my Cabinet colleagues. But | don't think, | am persuaded that that is a
matter which India should foliow simply because Pakistan had followed it
We will nol use Pakistan as some kind of a yardstick by which we either
judge ocur own methods or aiter our own methods  Madam, the path ahead
is quite clear to us. We wiil continue to approach the issue. the India-
Pakistan relations, on the broadest possibie front, through people-to-pecple
dialogue, commerce, trade, cuiture, in totality of the relationship, including
complex issues like nuclear, military and other interests, We cannot
become uni-focat kike the good General, however praiseworthy he may be 1o
some peopla.  We have no ambiguity about the status of Jammu and
Kashmir. The hon. Leader of the Opposition said, "l find, that is a good
sentiment. But what you say is not understood by the people. You have
said that Kashmir 15 not the core issue.” Madam, Kashmir 15 at the core of

any issue, and | said the same thing. | sad, "W -FviR ®E THT B gES
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T8 &, 9% TR W} @1 aim & 11t appears to me, quintessentially, what India
stands for, as a civilised nation, We cannct make a difference between the
brother in Jammu and Kashmir and the brother in other places -- g 4f¥s,
A, fan, g=0, qawaa @ R 8 Wi awa & AR #

Madam, as ragards CBMs and other things, we will pursue them;
SAARC has resumed its process. On dialogue, | can only say that though
differences are expressed in this case, a caravan of peace is in motion, We
had set it in motion at Lahcre. We were interrupted at Kargil, We were
interrupted at Kandahar. We were interrupted by the killings, whether at
Chattisingpura or at other places. But this caravan will continue. Agra was
one of the padavs of this caravan. The caravan of peace will continue, and
the dogs of war cannot stop this caravan, Thank you, Madam.

DR. MANMOHAN SINGH: Madam, | would want o know three
things which have not been answered by bim now. | had raised this
question of lack of preparedness, and | seek the indulgence of the hon.
Foreign Minister to inform us: "Are there other instances where a summit of
this nature has laken place without a structured agenda? In particular, what
happened at Lahore? Was the Lahore Summil also a case of a summit
without a structured agenda? That is the first question which | would like to
ask. The second question that | would like to address to the hon. Minister is
this. | know that he did provide a lot of technical assistance to the hon.
Foreign Minister of Pakistan 1o correct his English and, according to various
accounts, he and Mr. Abdul Sattar had jointly initialled a draft, and,
according {0 newspapers repcris, it was left to Advaniji in the Cabinet
Committee on Security to shoot down that draft. | would like to know from
the Minister whether there is any truth in this statement, which is widely
circulating in the Press? Is there such a draft which the hon. Foreign
Minister of India and the Foreign Minister of Pakistan had jointly prepared
and which, subsequently, was rejected by the Cabinet Committee on
Security? The third question which | have to ask the hon. Minister is with
regard to the role of the rnedia. Day-before-yesterday, when the hon.
Minister of Information and Broadcasting intervened in the debate, she
informed the House that her intervention at Agra was a part of grand
strateqy of the Government,

I would like to know from the hon. Foreign Minister whether that
grand strategy was in accordance with which the hon. Minister of
Information and Broadcasting issued a pross statement at Agra and to
which the delegation of Pakistan took such great offence.
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SHRI JASWANT SINGH: | wili address all the three briefly, but
explicitly, and as candidly as | can. Starting with the third, our distinguished
colleague in the Cabinet, and my frisnd, Sushmaji, as the Minister of
Information and Broadcasting, was requested by me, saying that it was a
summit between two Governments, Head of Government to Head of
Government; it was only appropriate that you find it convenient to be
present in Agra and that it is under your overall supervision that the entire
visiting media, whether Indian or Pakistani or foreign ...finterruptions)...
When she intervened, and | think it was on the 15", and said something to
the Press, now, you can't.. a7 <& f& faa 0 &6 sl oz & &f guww h
qrelt @ w1 Al wfF afre $ wEEdT RA g A Rrema @@t g9 1w
TEd g¢ Y awche T8 8 ¥ &) § amumm aaw wrn Ad SO mmgen| gy o
7?38 ¥ Idd ft T ar| As we do, a number of newspapers conduct a
kind of survay, and a question is posed and some readers answer. So, he
kept telling me, “Look here, this is a survey conducted by so and so paper
and that paper is saying that 78% of India wants you to talk on Jammu and
Kashmir. 3k sy fraaa $Y o @ & 99 N 99 gsargex A Fsr t Now, this
is extreme military simplicity. The question that was posed was in a certain
fashion. I¢ 3R o 9P HE W & that 78% of India wants you to talk on
Jammu and Kakshmir. gR¥h @ 3 @5 f5 9/ wwen 9@ W RS
fer offw z=wrtym ok arewifReT A 59 @@t A wut Y AR TPk «w
qradia T8 g% | 9| FNR g8l @ g a1 g8 daen S iR owa wed & fag
frepd @€ B I o TF FETw, T S8 5 Afe, A S nHa £ A RRw
sIegie # #) They are part of the official statement of the Head of
Government of [ndia at the delegation-level meeting. & Jad anft T8 39g
@ far only out of deference to... o fgd Rede a8t o e & Fo
TRy ford 9, grredR drd 9 iy 99 9% e wede ' e a8, we
believe that the two should be issued simultaneously.

With due deference to the Leadear of the Opposition, again, | do
appeal to you, Sir, pay less heed to what General Quraishi said, and a
skghtly greater heed 1o what your colleague in Parliament, the Minister of
Information and Broadcasting, said. By all means, take into account what
General Quraishi says. But General Quraishi, as the spokesman of Pakistan,
is not the authorised version. He will naturally say what Pakistan wants to
be said and give the colour that it requires to be given to a particular thing.
It was her duty to do so. She did it after consulting me and she, in fact,
made it clear to me that amo ot e @ aUif® g a8 F A &1 | do not
carry my cell-phone. | do have one. But | usa it only to call, never to
receive telephone calls. &% w@®m @el [l 3 g W & R @ &
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e B gVFa &, @ T8 = wFd, de gR & 9w B A = &g she s
right. et &3 et f o fa & Frddard &1 it was my duty. | was not
able to., s@ & gy A N &€ 15 firie ¥ FR{ IO HA g1 W@ A g W W
amar g | Madam, the Leader of the Oppasition said that there was an agreed
draft which my distinguished counterpart, the Foreign Minister of Pakistan
and 1, initialled, angd that we worked it out in pencil. Madam, no draft was
initialled. The suggestion here is that a full agreed text of an agreement was
worked out; and that he and | then nitialled it. No. That is the first factual
error. As | said, and | have no difficulty in being absolutely candid, there
were Six square brackets in that document that had got prepared in the
egvening, really 4.30 in the moming of 16'“; and that document went to the
two heads of the Government, with a view to eliminating as many of the
square brackets as possible. T UH TF TE N, F IAT =R T o
a9 & T-FPIR | oW gl gIfteT % @ | orRd wies A wEl [ 9d, sed
¥ gy #§ Iud & This is again part of the military diractive. Admirable
trait, when a military issue is to be addressed. But | thought this is really not
the way to go about it. So, | proposed amg grt 56 & & Bre ¥feA 1 My
elder, my distinguished counterpart, Sattar saheb, and |, we will address
ourselves. Then, it was about 2.30 in the afternoon. Ajmer is already
abandoned, or, postponed. Now, the Foreign Ministers should not be doing
it. But we said, sz gferr forma &, In the process, one particular square
bracket, we attempted to reformulate it in a particular fashion. Mr. Sattar
said, "Let me take this reformulation back to Hotel Amar Vilas where the
General is staying". Because Wvdt Hizd 3w fema & i @ 91 And this
was taking place at Hotel Jaypee Palace. So, he said, "Let me take it back
to the General® And | said, *| must take it back to my Cabinet colleagues. |
am not autonomous. The General is, perhaps, autonomous. | am not, | must
take it back to the Cabinet®. It was not the Cabinet Committee on Security.
It happened to become. So, because that was the part of the delegation,
Mr. Maran, Mr. Yashwant Sinha, Mr. L.K. Advani and the Prime Minister, all
of us sat there, | said, "This is what it is*. All of us then said, "This will not
do. We have to go back to india. The priority is not to find an agreed text.
The priority is to find such an agreed text, as meets the acceptance of
India, because, without the commitment of India, it is a piece of paper. Ws
are not just working on pieces of paper’. g2t df #1% afPr & 4 w1 5 A
WFR P 3R ¥ HRa o g, like lawyers settle a brief. | was not ssttiing a
brief. It is a very difficult task when ong explains. | must say, it is to the
credit of my counterpant, Mr. Sattar. He said, 292 sada f&g o, & amod <9
AR ENTAR a2 &l g9 9
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g avw 9 mfera Al o8 wE 3a &) 98 T o o ¥ & HY arem ar
TR G ® FEn, &g 9 &1 @ 2 a7 M| §X 309 o IAD] HET T8 | HUA

gel gofay A @71 ... (weur)...

DR. MANMOHAN SINGH: If you were so convinced that india could
never accept such a drafl, why did you take it to the Cabingt?

SHRI JASWANT SINGH: | took it to the Cabiret: | was not
convinced. Mr. Sattar said, 99 3T &9 99 7@ d6a | was not convinced. |
was trying to move it beyond. S0, | said that, faithfully, | will convey this. |
was not convinced. Had | been convinced, why would | agréee with my
Cabinet colleagues and come back and say? 4g& Wl @™ §Ha! »-1 gSa 2
THH B aFl ONh a9 gsal & | WIUP FEX & qE9S ... (WEAE)... S HAAEA
e i wr @ & q9 e & 7| 9E9, AW A FM.EI Y 7 @ 2 T #a gw
T 3™ & duw § R am Tl

i yrliw-gz- @ wliw : R T @ o, B R ad e

Nt Swda e : e ot 98 e | o dwu @Y wEfal grg § 1 e fiee
# wArd ¥ 7 g | $90 3 FEfigl SEeY "Ed 9m < 9Ed € | e geired 8
@ FE I UF T, qU AT AT TA W@ L) A A FE FY 47w &, 70 2 R qf
ed aa @ ¢

st gtw vt wdEw, wn wErh F $1 0 T gy s o & @
W ariEdla B2

oft Srags e e & SR 2

SUEMfy . T H1 @ M HEN | GRY ) W, 8 B & T FE o
21 @ g e T R E

Mumaa e @i on W Iigr i R N T @ 2
' I MR AR I M W AT ST EEE R R IT R
¢ P U=d oon B &1 @ FW TR T, AT Y A0 a@ml s g | N w79,
W 3 %, a0 @Y Yo oon v 2, @ W W o &1 AF1 &8 70 @ FE o, A
sv“ﬂﬁ%.ﬁﬁﬁiﬁww.@mﬁmwwﬁmimmﬁm,w
A Tt &

JUEHTIRY ; BT SHS! 9 & bw f8an) ergael o I R
AN AFTF IFger § 1 & X w @ @ & A IR w99 ot °
&F Rt

st srada fae . glifae o¢ o5 &1 € & o8 Awd & ¢4 The Final
point what Dr. Manmchan Singh wanied to know if there are any examples

&

iﬁ%“
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of summit hav.ng taken place without an agenda and also whether Lahore
was such an example. Lsat me be fair with him, Lahore had been preceded
by a meeting on 237 September in New York between Mian Nawaz Sharief
and Prime Minister Vajpayee. There was no agenda fixed. There was a
broad agreement that ‘we will meet and talk'. | was part of the Lahore
process also. Bul with regard to any summit having taken place without an
agenda, ves, very recently the mesting between Putin and Bush.. These are
to get acquainted with each other. There are two Heads of States. They do
not know each other, President Bush was just got elected. There are
millions of such exampies. But, Madam, this is not really a lesson on
diplomatic history. It is a question that | attempted to answer because my
distinguished colleague and a senior Member, the Leader of the Opposition
asked, and | have attemplted to address, as far as | can, the queries raised by
the hon. Members. Thank you very much.

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now we have a guestion before the
House. We are well into the time of the Private Members' Business. | was
reminded that there is auto-rickshaw strike also. Mr. Virumbi was telling
that as the Leader of his Party, he has not moved out since eleven o'clock.
| think it is inhuman, If the House so agrees, we can adjourn the House
for half-an-hour so that the Members can have a cup of tea.
.(Interruptions)...1 can also have a cup of tea. .. (interruptions)...| was
sitting there and | was asked to come. ...finterruptions)...

sft vy firg hem - wwd a1g @ wew & T8 @
I . aE @ e 3 f ¥ o
SHR! DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE (West Bengal) : Madam, we have

to adjourn at five o'clock because many Members have to catch their
fights. ...finterruptions)...

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Do you want to continue to sit?
..{interruptions)... | have no problem. 1 can ask Sureshji 1o come to my rescue.

(THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI SURESH PACHOURYI) IN THE CHAIR)

PRIVATE MEMBERS BILLS
THE CONSTITUTION (AMENDMENT) BILL, 2000
(To amend tha Eighth Schedule)

SHRI K.C. KONDAIAR (Karnataka) . Sir, | beg to move for leave to
introduce a Bill further to amend the Constitution of India.

The question was putl and the motion was adopted,
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